
 

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4 

Council Member Diane Adoma – District 5 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
August 26, 2019 

7:00 p.m. 
3120 Stonecrest Blvd. Suite 190 

Stonecrest, Georgia 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Jason Lary 
 

II. ROLL CALL:  Megan Reid, City Clerk 
 

III. INVOCATION 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

V. AWARDS AND HONORS 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF THE COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

VII. MINUTES: 
a. Approval of the August 12, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 

 
VIII. PRESENTATIONS:  

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
X. APPOINTMENTS: 

 
XI. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
a. RZ-19-006- Rezone Application (6024 Covington Hwy) 
b. RZ-19-007- Rezone Application (1794, 1800 & 1850 Phillips Rd) 



Americans with Disabilities Act 
 

The City of Stonecrest does not discriminate on the basis of disability in its programs, services, 
activities and employment practices.  
 
If you need auxiliary aids and services for effective communication (such as a sign language 
interpreter, an assistive listening device or print material in digital format) or reasonable 
modification to programs, services or activities contact the ADA Coordinator, Megan Reid, as soon 
as possible, preferably 2 days before the activity or event. 

 
 

 
 

XII. NEW BUSINESS: 
a. Affirmed Policy Consulting, LLC- Contract 
b. Purchasing Policy  

 
 

XIII. OLD BUSINESS: 
 
 
 

XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

WHEN AN EXECUTIVE SESSION IS REQUIRED, ONE WILL BE CALLED FOR THE FOLLOWING 
ISSUES:  1) PERSONNEL, 2) LITIGATION, 3) REAL ESTATE 

 
XV. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

 
XVI. CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS 

 
XVII. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
XVIII. ADJOURNMENT 



 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
SUBJECT:  Minutes from 8/12/2019 
 
( ) ORDINANCE (  ) POLICY (  ) STATUS REPORT 
      
( ) DISCUSSION ONLY (  )  RESOLUTION (X)  OTHER 

 
 
Council Meeting:  08-26-2019  
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Danielle Matricardi, Esq. 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
  
  
HISTORY:     

 
 

FACTS AND ISSUES:   
 
 
 
OPTIONS:  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:    Approval by Mayor and Council 



1 
 

             

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4 

Council Member Diane Adoma – District 5 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
August 12, 2019 

 7:00 p.m. 
3120 Stonecrest Blvd. Suite 190 

Stonecrest, Georgia 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Jason Lary 
 

II. ROLL CALL:   All members were present. 
 

III. INVOCATION:  Invocation was led by Pastor Bob Lindsay.  
  

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

V. AWARDS AND HONORS 
 

1. Council Member George Turner recognized DeKalb Lions and proclaimed August 
12 as DeKalb Lions Day. The Lions are the first African-American youth baseball 
team from the United States and from Georgia in 11 years to compete in the 2019 
Cooperstown Baseball World “Hall of Fame” Tournament. 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF THE COUNCIL AGENDA: 

 
Motion 1- was made by Council Member Diane Adoma to approve the agenda and a 
second was provided by Council Member Jimmy Clanton. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 

VII. MINUTES: 

Council Member George Turner said the wrong name at the last meeting and would 
like to correct the name of the Brandol Major from the last meeting. 



2 
 

Motion 2- was made by Council Member Rob Turner to approve the Council Meeting 
Minutes from July 8, 2019 and a second from Council Member George Turner. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 
VIII. PRESENTATIONS: 

None. 
 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 

• Ayana Bell- Would like more police presence at Charles Cudd Court 
• Willie Dunlap- Would like more police presence at Charles Cudd Court 

• Sharlene Green- No Show 
 

X.  APPOINTMENTS:  

None 
 

XI. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

None 

XII. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Transportation Master Plan Award 

 

Recommendation by Staff to award Contract in the amount of $178,520 to VHB. 

 
Motion 3- was made by Mayor Lary to ward the contract to VHB in the amount of 
$178,520 and was seconded by Council Member Jimmy Clanton. 
 
Motion 4-  was made by Council Member Adoma to defer the decision until the city 
has a comprehensive purchasing policy. Motion failed. 
 
Motion 3 passed 5-1 with Council Member Diane Adoma opposing. 
 

 
2. CEI Contract Award 

 

Deputy City Manager Plez Joyner read aloud a memo from Ken Hilderbrand and the 
recommendation of Southeastern Engineering Inc in the amount of $50,0000. 



3 
 

Motion 5- was made by Council Member George Turner to award the Contract for 
CEI Services to Southeastern Engineering Inc in the amount of $50,000 and seconded 
by Council Member Rob Turner. 

Motion 6-  was made by Council Member Adoma to defer the decision until the next 
council meeting on August 26. Motion failed. 

Motion 5 passed 5-1 with Council Member Diane Adoma opposing. 

3. Parks and Recreation Master Plan Contract 
 

Sean DePalma, Parks and Recreation Director, read the recommendation from staff to 
award the contract to Green Play, LLC in the amount of $199,995. 

 

Motion 7- was made by Council Member Rob Turner to award the Contract for Parks 
and Recreation Master Plan to Green Play LLC in the amount of $199,995 and 
seconded by Council Member Jimmy Clanton. 

Motion 7 passed 5-1 with Council Member Diane Adoma opposing. 

Council Member Adoma made a comment about her displeasure with the process of 
awarding the contracts. 

 
 
 

XIII. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  

WHEN AND EXECUTIVE SESSION IS REQUIRED, ONE WILL BE CALLED FOR THE 
FOLLOWING ISSUES: 1) PERSONNEL, 2) LITIGATION, 3) REAL ESTATE 

None. 

  
 

XV. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:   
No comments. 

 
XVI. CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS:    

No comments 
 

XVII. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
 



4 
 

 
Council Member Rob Turner- Invited the Public to come to the Film and 
Entertainment Committee’s Event with actor Rob Townsend hosting the documentary  
“Making The Five Heartbeats” on Saturday 
 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton-  District 1 Meeting the 1st Saturday of the Month at 
10:00am at the AEI Start Up Factory 

Council Member George Turner – District 4 Overlay Committee Meeting scheduled 
for August 13 at 6pm a the the Salem/Panola Library 

 
Council Member Adoma- Stated she was accepted to the GA Academy for Economic 
Development. Also will be working with the 100 Women 100 Million Dollar Project and 
getting people Small Business Association Certifications 
 
 

XVIII. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Motion 16- was made by Jimmy Clanton to adjourn the Council meeting at 8:00pm 
and a second was provided by Council Member George Turner. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Read and adopted in the regular meeting of the City Council held on this _____ 
day of _______________, 2019. 
    __________________________ 
    Mayor Jason Lary 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Megan P. Reid, City Clerk 



























































































































































































 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
SUBJECT:  Affirmed Policy Consulting LLC Contract 
 
( ) ORDINANCE (  ) POLICY (  ) STATUS REPORT 
      
( ) DISCUSSION ONLY (  )  RESOLUTION (X)  OTHER 

 
 
Council Meeting:  08-26-2019  
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Mayor Jason Lary 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
  
  
HISTORY:     

 
 

FACTS AND ISSUES:   
 
 
 
OPTIONS:  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:    Approval by Mayor and Council 



 Page 1 of 7 
 

GENERAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

THIS GENERAL SERVICE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") dated this ________________ day 
of ________, ________ 
 
BETWEEN: 

City of Stonecrest, Georgia of 3120 Stonecrest Boulevard, Stonecrest, Georgia, 30038 
(the "Client")  

- AND - 

Affirmed Policy Consulting, LLC of P.O. Box 377, Redan, Georgia, 30074 
(the "Contractor").  

BACKGROUND: 

A. The Client is of the opinion that the Contractor has the necessary qualifications, experience and 
abilities to provide  services to the Client. 

B. The Contractor is agreeable to providing such  services to the Client on the terms and conditions set 
out in this Agreement. 

IN CONSIDERATION OF the matters described above and of the mutual benefits and obligations set 
forth in this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which consideration is hereby acknowledged, the 
Client and the Contractor (individually the "Party" and collectively the "Parties" to this Agreement) agree 
as follows:  

Services Provided  

1. The Client hereby agrees to engage the Contractor to provide the Client with the following services 
(the "Services"):  

• Internal Financial Auditing; 
• Fiscal Impact Analysis and Reporting; 
• Charter and Policy Compliance Auditing; 
• Quarterly and Annual Compliance Reporting; and 
• Policy and Procedure Consultation 



 Page 2 of 7 
 

2. The Services will also include any other tasks which the Parties may agree on. The Contractor 
hereby agrees to provide such Services to the Client. 

Term of Agreement. 

3. The term of this Agreement (the "Term") will begin on July 1, 2019 and will remain in full force 
and effect until December 31, 2019, subject to earlier termination as provided in this Agreement. 
The Term of this Agreement may be extended with the written consent of the Parties. 

4. In the event that either Party wishes to terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, prior to 
December 31, 2019, the terminating Party will be required to provide 30 days' written notice to the 
other Party. 

Performance 

5. The Parties agree to do everything necessary to ensure that the terms of this Agreement take effect. 

Currency 

6. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all monetary amounts referred to in this 
Agreement are in USD (US Dollars). 

Compensation 

7.  The Contractor will charge the Client for Services the amount of $100.00 per hour for Services 
performed; provided, that, the Contractor’s hours during any calendar month in excess of 40 hours 
requires the written approval of the City Manager of the Client to be compensable. 

8. On the effective date of this Agreement, the Contractor shall continue to provide services without 
an additional retainer. 

9. On the termination or non-renewal by the Client of this Agreement, the Contractor shall prepare a 
final invoice.  If the amount of the compensable charges exceed the beginning retainer balance, 
then the Client shall pay the Contractor such excess amount within 15 days of its receipt of the 
invoice.  If however, the final invoice reflects that the compensable charges are less than the 
beginning retainer balance, the amount of the remaining retainer shall be reimbursed to the Client 
by the Contractor with 15 days of its delivery of the invoice to the Client. 



 Page 3 of 7 
 

Reimbursement of Expenses 

10. The Contractor will be reimbursed from time to time for reasonable and necessary expenses 
incurred by the Contractor in connection with providing the Services. 

11. All expenses must be pre-approved by the Client to be reimbursed. 

Confidentiality 

12. Confidential information (the "Confidential Information") refers to any data or information relating 
to the business of the Client which would reasonably be considered to be proprietary to the Client 
including, but not limited to, accounting records, business processes, and client records and that is 
not generally known in the industry of the Client and where the release of that Confidential 
Information could reasonably be expected to cause harm to the Client. 

13. The Contractor agrees that it will not disclose, divulge, reveal, report or use, for any purpose, any 
confidential information which the Contractor has obtained, except as authorized by the Client or 
as required by law. The obligations of confidentiality will apply during the term of this Agreement 
and will survive indefinitely upon termination of this Agreement. 

14. All written and oral information and material disclosed or provided by the Client to the Contractor 
under this Agreement is Confidential Information regardless of whether it was provided before or 
after the date of this Agreement or how it was provided to the Contractor. 

Ownership of Intellectual Property 

15. All intellectual property and related material, including any trade secrets, moral rights, goodwill, 
relevant registrations or applications for registration, and rights in any patent, copyright, 
trademark, trade dress, industrial design and trade name (the "Intellectual Property") that is 
developed or produced under this Agreement, is a "work made for hire" and will be the sole 
property of the Client. The use of the Intellectual Property by the Client will not be restricted in 
any manner. 

16. The Contractor may not use the Intellectual Property for any purpose other than that contracted for 
in this Agreement except with the written consent of the Client. The Contractor will be responsible 
for any and all damages resulting from the unauthorized use of the Intellectual Property. 



 Page 4 of 7 
 

Return of Property 

17. Upon the expiry or termination of this Agreement, the Contractor will return to the Client any 
property, documentation, records, or Confidential Information which is the property of the Client. 

Capacity/Independent Contractor 

18. In providing the Services under this Agreement it is expressly agreed that the Contractor is acting 
as an independent contractor and not as an employee. The Contractor and the Client acknowledge 
that this Agreement does not create a partnership or joint venture between them, and is exclusively 
a contract for service.  The Client is not required to pay, or make any contributions to, any social 
security, local, state or federal tax, unemployment compensation, workers' compensation, 
insurance premium, profit-sharing, pension or any other employee benefit for the Contractor 
during the Term.  The Contractor is responsible for paying, and complying with reporting 
requirements for, all local, state and federal taxes related to payments made to the Contractor under 
this Agreement. 

Notice 

19. All notices, requests, demands or other communications required or permitted by the terms of this 
Agreement will be given in writing and delivered to the Parties at the following addresses:  

a. City of Stonecrest, Georgia 
3120 Stonecrest Boulevard, Stonecrest, Georgia, 30038 

b. Affirmed Policy Consulting, LLC 
P.O. Box 377, Redan, Georgia, 30074 
and 
5429 Savoy Chase Crossing, Stonecrest, GA 30038 

or to such other address as either Party may from time to time notify the other, and will be deemed 
to be properly delivered (a) immediately upon being served personally, (b) two days after being 
deposited with the postal service if served by registered mail, or (c) the following day after being 
deposited with an overnight courier.  

Indemnification 



 Page 5 of 7 
 

20. The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Client, and its respective elected 
officials, officers, agents, employees, and permitted successors and assigns against any and all 
claims, losses, damages, liabilities, penalties, punitive damages, expenses, reasonable legal fees 
and costs of any kind or amount whatsoever, which result from or arise out of any act or omission 
of the Contractor, its respective member managers, shareholders, affiliates, officers, agents, 
employees, and permitted successors and assigns that occurs in connection with this Agreement. 
This indemnification will survive the termination of this Agreement. 

Modification of Agreement 

21. Any amendment or modification of this Agreement or additional obligation assumed by either 
Party in connection with this Agreement will only be binding if evidenced in writing signed by 
each Party or an authorized representative of each Party. 

Time of the Essence 

22. Time is of the essence in this Agreement. No extension or variation of this Agreement will operate 
as a waiver of this provision. 

Assignment 

23. The Contractor will not voluntarily, or by operation of law, assign or otherwise transfer its 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Client. 

Entire Agreement 

24. It is agreed that there is no representation, warranty, collateral agreement or condition affecting this 
Agreement except as expressly provided in this Agreement. 

Enurement 

25. This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding on the Parties and their respective heirs, 
executors, administrators and permitted successors and assigns. 

Titles/Headings 

26. Headings are inserted for the convenience of the Parties only and are not to be considered when 
interpreting this Agreement. 



 Page 6 of 7 
 

Gender 

27. Words in the singular mean and include the plural and vice versa. Words in the masculine mean 
and include the feminine and vice versa. 

Governing Law 

28. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Georgia. 

Severability 

29. In the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be invalid or unenforceable in 
whole or in part, all other provisions will nevertheless continue to be valid and enforceable with 
the invalid or unenforceable parts severed from the remainder of this Agreement. 

Waiver 

30. The waiver by either Party of a breach, default, delay or omission of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement by the other Party will not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the 
same or other provisions. 

 
 



©2002-2017 LawDepot.com™ Page 7 of 7 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have duly affixed their signatures under hand and seal on this 
________________ day of ________, ________. 
 
  

 
 
_______________________________ 
ATTEST: City Clerk, Stonecrest, Georgia  

 
 
_______________________________ 
Mayor, City of Stonecrest, Georgia  

 
 
_______________________________ 
Affirmed Policy Consulting, LLC 
 

WITNESS:  ______________________  
 
Per:____________________________ (Seal)  

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

City Attorney 

 
 



 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
SUBJECT:  Discount Store Ordinance 
 
(X ) ORDINANCE (  ) POLICY (  ) STATUS REPORT 
      
( ) DISCUSSION ONLY (  )  RESOLUTION ( )  OTHER 

 
 
Council Meeting:  08-26-2019  
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Danielle Matricardi, Esq. 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
  
  
HISTORY:     

 
 

FACTS AND ISSUES:   
 
 
 
OPTIONS:  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:    Approval by Mayor and Council 



[1229-0008/308099/1] 1 
 
 

STATE OF GEROGIA  
DEKALB COUNTY 
CITY OF STONECREST     ORDINANCE 2019-____-____ 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO REVISE THE CITY OF STONECREST ZONING REGULATIONS TO 1 
PROHIBIT SMALL BOX DISCOUNT STORES IN THE CITY; TO PROVIDE FOR 2 
SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR AN 3 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PUPOSES. 4 
 5 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of the City of Stonecrest (“City”) is the Mayor 6 
and Council thereof; and 7 
 8 
WHEREAS, the City of Stonecrest’s current Zoning Ordinance is codified as Chapter 27 of the 9 
City Code; and  10 
 11 
WHEREAS, Article 3 of the Zoning Ordinance provides for certain uses to be permitted and/or 12 
prohibited within the City; and 13 
 14 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find that small box discount stores contribute to an 15 
economically depressive state of neighborhoods and lead to diminishment of viable alternative 16 
options such as supermarkets and grocery stores with fresh produce; and 17 
 18 
WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Stonecrest, Georgia, will be 19 
positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; and  20 
 21 
WHEREAS, a property-advertised hearing pursuant to the Georgia Zoning Procedures Act has 22 
been held by the Mayor and City Council prior to adoption of this Ordinance. 23 
 24 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Stonecrest 25 
hereby ordain as follows: 26 
 27 

SECTION I. 28 
 29 
 The City of Stonecrest Zoning Code as it currently exists in Chapter 27 of the City 30 
Code is hereby revised by adding the following use to the “Prohibited Use” provisions of 31 
Article 3 (“Overlay District Regulations”), Division 5 (“Stonecrest Area Overlay District”), 32 
Sections 3.5.13(B) (“High-Rise Mixed-Use Zone (Tier I Zone)”), 3.5.14(B) (“Mid-Rise 33 
Mixed-Use Zone (Tier II Zone)”), 3.5.15(B) (Low-Rise Mixed-Use Zone (Tier III)”), and 34 
3.5.15.1(D) (“Traditional Mixed-Use Zone (Tier IV)”) to read as follows as subsection 35 
(B)(24) in Tier I, subsection (B)(25) in Tier II, (B)(24) in Tier III, and (B)(23) in Tier IV to 36 
read as follows: 37 



[1229-0008/308099/1] 2 
 
 

 38 
“Small Box Discount Stores.” 39 
 40 
Division 5 is further revised by amending Section 3.5.15.2 (“Cluster Village Mixed-41 

Use Zone (Tier V)”), subsection (B)(10) (“Principal Uses and Structures”), to read as 42 
follows: 43 
 44 

B. Principal uses and structures.  All properties in Tier V shall be governed 45 
by all of the underlying zoning district regulations and the requirements of 46 
this section.  In addition, all properties in Tier V may be use for the 47 
following principal uses of land and structures: 48 

 . . . . .  49 
(10) Retail, excluding drive-through facilities, gas and service stations, 50 

commercial amusements, liquor stores, video arcades, pool halls, 51 
and discount retail shopsSmall Box Discount Stores. 52 

. . . . . 53 

 54 

SECTION II. 55 

 Article 3 of the City of Stonecrest Zoning Code is hereby further amended by 56 
revising Division 33 (“Interstate 20 Corridor Compatible Use Overlay District”), by adding 57 
the following use to Section 3.33.6(A) (“Prohibited Uses”) as subsection (A)(18) to read as 58 
follows: 59 

“Small Box Discount Stores.” 60 

SECTION III. 61 

 The City of Stonecrest Zoning Ordinance is hereby further amended by revising 62 
Article 4 (“Use Regulations”), Table 4.1 (“Use Table”), by amending the following stated 63 
uses under the “Commercial” designation, “Retail” sub-designation, to read as follows: 64 

“Grocery Store (with the exception of Small Box Discount Stores)” 65 

“Retail, 5000 sf or less (with the exception of Small Box Discount Stores)” 66 

“Retail, over 5000 sf (with the exception of Small Box Discount Stores)” 67 

“Variety Store (with the exception of Small Box Discount Stores)” 68 

 SECTION IV. 69 



[1229-0008/308099/1] 3 
 
 

 The City of Stonecrest Zoning Ordinance is hereby further amended by revising 70 
Article 9 (“Definitions”), Section 9.1.3 (“Defined Terms”) by adding the definition of 71 
“Small Box Discount Store” to read as follows: 72 

“Small Box Discount Store:  A retail establishment with a floor area less than 73 
12,000 square feet that offers for sale a combination and variety of convenience 74 
shopping goods and consumer shopping goods, and continuously offers a majority 75 
of the items in their inventory for sale at a price per item of $5.00 or less.  This 76 
definition shall control any use that fits into same despite otherwise being termed 77 
“Grocery Store,” “Retail, 5000 sf or less,” “Retail, over 5000 sf,” or “Variety 78 
Store” under the provisions of the City of Stonecrest Zoning Ordinance and Use 79 
Table.  Small Box Discount Stores shall be a prohibited use in every zoning 80 
district of the City of Stonecrest.” 81 

SECTION V.  82 

The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by reference 83 
as if fully set out herein.  84 

SECTION VI.  85 

This Ordinance shall be codified in a manner consistent with the laws of the State of Georgia and 86 
the City.  87 

SECTION VII.  88 

(a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that all sections, 89 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, upon their enactment, 90 
believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional.  91 

(b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent 92 
allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 93 
is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It 94 
is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent 95 
allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually 96 
dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance.  97 

(c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this Ordinance shall, 98 
for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional, or otherwise unenforceable by 99 
the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the 100 
Mayor and Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the 101 
greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable 102 
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or section of the Ordinance and that, 103 
to the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 104 



[1229-0008/308099/1] 4 
 
 

sections of the Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and 105 
effect.  106 

SECTION VIII.  107 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby expressly repealed.  108 

SECTION IX.  109 

The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein.  110 

 

So Ordained this _________ day of _________________, 2019.  

 

 

 
        Approved: 
 
 
        ________________________ 
        Jason Lary, Sr., Mayor 
 
 
As to form: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Winston A. Denmark., City Attorney 
 

 

Attest: 

 
___________________________ 
Megan Reid, City Clerk 
 



 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
SUBJECT:  Party House Ordinance 
 
(X ) ORDINANCE (  ) POLICY (  ) STATUS REPORT 
      
( ) DISCUSSION ONLY (  )  RESOLUTION ( )  OTHER 

 
 
Council Meeting:  08-26-2019  
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Danielle Matricardi, Esq. 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
  
  
HISTORY:     

 
 

FACTS AND ISSUES:   
 
 
 
OPTIONS:  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:    Approval by Mayor and Council 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 1 
 
 

STATE OF GEROGIA  
DEKALB COUNTY 
CITY OF STONECREST     ORDINANCE 2019-____-____ 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO REVISE THE CITY OF STONECREST ZONING REGULATIONS TO 1 
REGULATE PARTY HOUSES IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS; TO PROVIDE FOR 2 
SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR AN 3 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PUPOSES. 4 
 5 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of the City of Stonecrest (“City”) is the Mayor 6 
and Council thereof; and 7 
 8 
WHEREAS, the City of Stonecrest’s current Zoning Ordinance is codified as Chapter 27 of the 9 
City Code; and  10 
 11 
WHEREAS, the Council finds that the City has had numerous problems with persons in single 12 
family residential homes running party home businesses, disturbing the neighborhood and 13 
causing an increase in nuisance and criminal activity; and 14 
 15 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find that in order to curb negative outcomes due to 16 
commercial party houses, the City would be duly served to regulate the location and 17 
circumstances of such property uses; and 18 
 19 
WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Stonecrest, Georgia, will be 20 
positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; and  21 
 22 
WHEREAS, a property-advertised hearing pursuant to the Georgia Zoning Procedures Act has 23 
been held by the Mayor and City Council prior to adoption of this Ordinance. 24 
 25 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Stonecrest 26 
hereby ordain as follows: 27 
 28 

SECTION I. 29 
 30 
 The City of Stonecrest Zoning Code as it currently exists in Chapter 27 of the City 31 
Code is hereby revised by revising Article 4 (“Use Regulations”), Division 1 (“Overview of 32 
Use Categories and Use Table”), Table 4.1 (“Use Table”), to add “Party House” to 33 
“Residential” use designation and placing same in the category of “SA” (Special 34 
Administrative Permit) in Zoning Districts “RE” and “RLG,” and prohibited in every 35 
other zoning district. 36 
 37 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 2 
 
 

Article 4 is further revised by adding new Section 4.2.58 (“Party Houses”) to 38 
Division 2 (“Supplemental Use Regulations”) to read as follows: 39 
 40 

Sec. 4.2.58.  Party Houses. 41 
 42 
(a) A Single Family Residential Property may only be utilized as a “Party 43 

House” by Special Administrative Permit in the “RE” and “RLG” zoning 44 
districts and only on lots with at least 300 feet of frontage on a public 45 
street and a primary structure no less than 4,000 square feet in area. 46 

 47 
(b) An event defined as a “Party House” may only be conducted inside the 48 

primary structure and/or in a completely fenced back yard. 49 
 50 
(c) With exception of traditional internal lighting and porch lights, no other 51 

illumination may be utilized during a “Party House” event, including, but 52 
not limited to, strobe lighting, disco-ball light, spotlight or any other light 53 
used to draw attention to the structure. 54 

 55 
(d) Any music utilized for the “Party House” event must be contained solely 56 

inside the primary structure and shall be subject to the applicable 57 
provisions of the City’s Noise Ordinance contained in Chapter 18, Article 58 
VII of the City Code. 59 

 60 
(e) In addition to a Special Administrative Permit, the owner of each “Party 61 

House” cannot have such an event at the residence without acquiring an 62 
occupation tax certificate from the City.  A Special Administrative Permit 63 
and Occupation Tax Certificate for a “Party House” may only be granted 64 
to the owner of the property. 65 

 66 
(f) Event guests at a “Party House” must park only on the designated 67 

driveway or on the public street  directly in front of the residential lot on 68 
which the event is taking place, on the same side of the street, and only for 69 
the length of the street frontage directly abutting the property. 70 

 71 
(g) A qualifying event at a “Party House” may not continue past 11p.m. on 72 

Sunday – Thursday, or midnight on Friday-Saturday or any Federal 73 
Holiday. 74 

 75 
(h) Neither a Special Administrative Permit nor an Occupation Tax Certificate 76 

may be granted to any property for a “Party House” that is located within 77 
2000 feet of any City or County park facility, senior housing or public or 78 
private school, or be within 1,000 feet of more than 2 other residential lots. 79 

 80 
(i) No alcohol may be sold during a qualifying event of a “Party House” and 81 

no more than one (1) drink may be included as part of a cover charge for 82 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 3 
 
 

said event.  For purposes of this provision, one drink shall be either a 12 83 
oz. malt beverage, 12 oz. glass of wine or an alcoholic drink featuring no 84 
more than 1.5 oz. of any distilled spirit. 85 

 86 
(j) A Special Administrative Permit and Occupation Tax Certificate for a 87 

“Party House” shall authorize the owner of the property no more than ten 88 
(10) such qualifying events in any calendar year. 89 

 90 

SECTION II. 91 

 Article 9 (“Definitions”) of the City of Stonecrest Zoning Code is hereby amended 92 
by revising Section 9.1.3 (“Defined Terms”) to add a definition of “Party House” to read as 93 
follows: 94 

“Party House:  A single-family detached dwelling unit, including all accessory 95 
structures, which is used for the purpose of hosting a commercial event.  For this 96 
definition, commercial event includes parties, ceremonies, receptions or similar-97 
scale gatherings where the attendees are charged entry to the event, either in cash 98 
money or other remuneration, or the structure and its curtilage otherwise functions 99 
as a commercial recreation facility.  An event produced by an owner-occupier of 100 
the property, or a long-term lessee residing on the property for a period not less 101 
than one year, where no remuneration is charged to guests shall not qualify under 102 
this definition.” 103 

SECTION III. 104 

 The City of Stonecrest Code is hereby further amended by revising Chapter 16 105 
(“Miscellaneous Provisions and Offenses”), Article III (“Offenses Against Public Peace, 106 
Order and Safety”), Division I (“Generally”), Section 16-20 (“Disorderly Conduct”) by 107 
adding subsections (b)(13) and (b)(14) to read as follows: 108 

Sec. 16-20.  Disorderly Conduct. 109 

. . . .  110 

(b) The following acts, among others, are declared to be disorderly conduct: 111 

 . . . .  112 

(13) Hosting a “party house,” as defined in the zoning ordinance, in 113 
violation of any provisions related to same in the Zoning Code or 114 
any other applicable ordinance of the City. 115 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 4 
 
 

(14) Attending a “party house,” as defined in the zoning ordinance, and 116 
causing any disturbance in violation of the city’s Noise Ordinance 117 
or being visibly drink in the front yard of the “party house” or 118 
public street. 119 

 SECTION IV. 120 

 The City of Stonecrest Code is further revised by amending Chapter 18 121 
(“Nuisances”), Article VII (“Noise”), Section 18-63(a) (“Sound Between the Hours of 11:00 122 
p.m. and 7:00 a.m.”) to read as follows: 123 

Sec. 18-63.  Sound Between the Hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 124 

(a) Single-Family Detached Dwellings.  It is unlawful for any person, between 125 
the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., or, in case of a “party house,” as 126 
defined in the zoning code, from its start time to its full conclusion, being 127 
no later than 12:00 a.m., to make, cause or allow any sound from a source 128 
within his ownership or control that projects, emits, or transmits into any 129 
single-family detached dwelling in a residential area owned or occupied 130 
by another, such that the sound is plainly audible anywhere within the 131 
interior of a sealed dwelling. 132 

. . . . . 133 

SECTION V.  134 

The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by reference 135 
as if fully set out herein.  136 

SECTION VI.  137 

This Ordinance shall be codified in a manner consistent with the laws of the State of Georgia and 138 
the City.  139 

SECTION VII.  140 

(a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that all sections, 141 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, upon their enactment, 142 
believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional.  143 

(b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent 144 
allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 145 
is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It 146 
is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent 147 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 5 
 
 

allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually 148 
dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance.  149 

(c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this Ordinance shall, 150 
for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional, or otherwise unenforceable by 151 
the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the 152 
Mayor and Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the 153 
greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable 154 
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or section of the Ordinance and that, 155 
to the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 156 
sections of the Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and 157 
effect.  158 

SECTION VIII.  159 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby expressly repealed.  160 

SECTION IX.  161 

The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein.  162 

 

So Ordained this _________ day of _________________, 2019.  

 

 

 
        Approved: 
 
 
        ________________________ 
        Jason Lary, Sr., Mayor 
 
 
As to form: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Winston A. Denmark., City Attorney 
 

 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 6 
 
 

Attest: 

 
___________________________ 
Megan Reid, City Clerk 
 



 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM 

 
SUBJECT:  Party House Ordinance 
 
(X ) ORDINANCE (  ) POLICY (  ) STATUS REPORT 
      
( ) DISCUSSION ONLY (  )  RESOLUTION ( )  OTHER 

 
 
Council Meeting:  08-26-2019  
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Danielle Matricardi, Esq. 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
  
  
HISTORY:     

 
 

FACTS AND ISSUES:   
 
 
 
OPTIONS:  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:    Approval by Mayor and Council 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 1 
 
 

STATE OF GEROGIA  
DEKALB COUNTY 
CITY OF STONECREST     ORDINANCE 2019-____-____ 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO REVISE THE CITY OF STONECREST ZONING REGULATIONS TO 1 
REGULATE PARTY HOUSES IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS; TO PROVIDE FOR 2 
SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR AN 3 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PUPOSES. 4 
 5 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of the City of Stonecrest (“City”) is the Mayor 6 
and Council thereof; and 7 
 8 
WHEREAS, the City of Stonecrest’s current Zoning Ordinance is codified as Chapter 27 of the 9 
City Code; and  10 
 11 
WHEREAS, the Council finds that the City has had numerous problems with persons in single 12 
family residential homes running party home businesses, disturbing the neighborhood and 13 
causing an increase in nuisance and criminal activity; and 14 
 15 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find that in order to curb negative outcomes due to 16 
commercial party houses, the City would be duly served to regulate the location and 17 
circumstances of such property uses; and 18 
 19 
WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Stonecrest, Georgia, will be 20 
positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; and  21 
 22 
WHEREAS, a property-advertised hearing pursuant to the Georgia Zoning Procedures Act has 23 
been held by the Mayor and City Council prior to adoption of this Ordinance. 24 
 25 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Stonecrest 26 
hereby ordain as follows: 27 
 28 

SECTION I. 29 
 30 
 The City of Stonecrest Zoning Code as it currently exists in Chapter 27 of the City 31 
Code is hereby revised by revising Article 4 (“Use Regulations”), Division 1 (“Overview of 32 
Use Categories and Use Table”), Table 4.1 (“Use Table”), to add “Party House” to 33 
“Residential” use designation and placing same in the category of “SA” (Special 34 
Administrative Permit) in Zoning Districts “RE” and “RLG,” and prohibited in every 35 
other zoning district. 36 
 37 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 2 
 
 

Article 4 is further revised by adding new Section 4.2.58 (“Party Houses”) to 38 
Division 2 (“Supplemental Use Regulations”) to read as follows: 39 
 40 

Sec. 4.2.58.  Party Houses. 41 
 42 
(a) A Single Family Residential Property may only be utilized as a “Party 43 

House” by Special Administrative Permit in the “RE” and “RLG” zoning 44 
districts and only on lots with at least 300 feet of frontage on a public 45 
street and a primary structure no less than 4,000 square feet in area. 46 

 47 
(b) An event defined as a “Party House” may only be conducted inside the 48 

primary structure and/or in a completely fenced back yard. 49 
 50 
(c) With exception of traditional internal lighting and porch lights, no other 51 

illumination may be utilized during a “Party House” event, including, but 52 
not limited to, strobe lighting, disco-ball light, spotlight or any other light 53 
used to draw attention to the structure. 54 

 55 
(d) Any music utilized for the “Party House” event must be contained solely 56 

inside the primary structure and shall be subject to the applicable 57 
provisions of the City’s Noise Ordinance contained in Chapter 18, Article 58 
VII of the City Code. 59 

 60 
(e) In addition to a Special Administrative Permit, the owner of each “Party 61 

House” cannot have such an event at the residence without acquiring an 62 
occupation tax certificate from the City.  A Special Administrative Permit 63 
and Occupation Tax Certificate for a “Party House” may only be granted 64 
to the owner of the property. 65 

 66 
(f) Event guests at a “Party House” must park only on the designated 67 

driveway or on the public street  directly in front of the residential lot on 68 
which the event is taking place, on the same side of the street, and only for 69 
the length of the street frontage directly abutting the property. 70 

 71 
(g) A qualifying event at a “Party House” may not continue past 11p.m. on 72 

Sunday – Thursday, or midnight on Friday-Saturday or any Federal 73 
Holiday. 74 

 75 
(h) Neither a Special Administrative Permit nor an Occupation Tax Certificate 76 

may be granted to any property for a “Party House” that is located within 77 
2000 feet of any City or County park facility, senior housing or public or 78 
private school, or be within 1,000 feet of more than 2 other residential lots. 79 

 80 
(i) No alcohol may be sold during a qualifying event of a “Party House” and 81 

no more than one (1) drink may be included as part of a cover charge for 82 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 3 
 
 

said event.  For purposes of this provision, one drink shall be either a 12 83 
oz. malt beverage, 12 oz. glass of wine or an alcoholic drink featuring no 84 
more than 1.5 oz. of any distilled spirit. 85 

 86 
(j) A Special Administrative Permit and Occupation Tax Certificate for a 87 

“Party House” shall authorize the owner of the property no more than ten 88 
(10) such qualifying events in any calendar year. 89 

 90 

SECTION II. 91 

 Article 9 (“Definitions”) of the City of Stonecrest Zoning Code is hereby amended 92 
by revising Section 9.1.3 (“Defined Terms”) to add a definition of “Party House” to read as 93 
follows: 94 

“Party House:  A single-family detached dwelling unit, including all accessory 95 
structures, which is used for the purpose of hosting a commercial event.  For this 96 
definition, commercial event includes parties, ceremonies, receptions or similar-97 
scale gatherings where the attendees are charged entry to the event, either in cash 98 
money or other remuneration, or the structure and its curtilage otherwise functions 99 
as a commercial recreation facility.  An event produced by an owner-occupier of 100 
the property, or a long-term lessee residing on the property for a period not less 101 
than one year, where no remuneration is charged to guests shall not qualify under 102 
this definition.” 103 

SECTION III. 104 

 The City of Stonecrest Code is hereby further amended by revising Chapter 16 105 
(“Miscellaneous Provisions and Offenses”), Article III (“Offenses Against Public Peace, 106 
Order and Safety”), Division I (“Generally”), Section 16-20 (“Disorderly Conduct”) by 107 
adding subsections (b)(13) and (b)(14) to read as follows: 108 

Sec. 16-20.  Disorderly Conduct. 109 

. . . .  110 

(b) The following acts, among others, are declared to be disorderly conduct: 111 

 . . . .  112 

(13) Hosting a “party house,” as defined in the zoning ordinance, in 113 
violation of any provisions related to same in the Zoning Code or 114 
any other applicable ordinance of the City. 115 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 4 
 
 

(14) Attending a “party house,” as defined in the zoning ordinance, and 116 
causing any disturbance in violation of the city’s Noise Ordinance 117 
or being visibly drink in the front yard of the “party house” or 118 
public street. 119 

 SECTION IV. 120 

 The City of Stonecrest Code is further revised by amending Chapter 18 121 
(“Nuisances”), Article VII (“Noise”), Section 18-63(a) (“Sound Between the Hours of 11:00 122 
p.m. and 7:00 a.m.”) to read as follows: 123 

Sec. 18-63.  Sound Between the Hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 124 

(a) Single-Family Detached Dwellings.  It is unlawful for any person, between 125 
the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., or, in case of a “party house,” as 126 
defined in the zoning code, from its start time to its full conclusion, being 127 
no later than 12:00 a.m., to make, cause or allow any sound from a source 128 
within his ownership or control that projects, emits, or transmits into any 129 
single-family detached dwelling in a residential area owned or occupied 130 
by another, such that the sound is plainly audible anywhere within the 131 
interior of a sealed dwelling. 132 

. . . . . 133 

SECTION V.  134 

The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by reference 135 
as if fully set out herein.  136 

SECTION VI.  137 

This Ordinance shall be codified in a manner consistent with the laws of the State of Georgia and 138 
the City.  139 

SECTION VII.  140 

(a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that all sections, 141 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, upon their enactment, 142 
believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional.  143 

(b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent 144 
allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 145 
is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It 146 
is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent 147 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 5 
 
 

allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually 148 
dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance.  149 

(c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this Ordinance shall, 150 
for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional, or otherwise unenforceable by 151 
the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the 152 
Mayor and Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the 153 
greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable 154 
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or section of the Ordinance and that, 155 
to the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 156 
sections of the Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and 157 
effect.  158 

SECTION VIII.  159 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby expressly repealed.  160 

SECTION IX.  161 

The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein.  162 

 

So Ordained this _________ day of _________________, 2019.  

 

 

 
        Approved: 
 
 
        ________________________ 
        Jason Lary, Sr., Mayor 
 
 
As to form: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Winston A. Denmark., City Attorney 
 

 



[1229-0008/308359/1] 6 
 
 

Attest: 

 
___________________________ 
Megan Reid, City Clerk 
 


	City Council Agenda 08262019
	Final Agenda Packet
	08-26-2019Agenda Packet.pdf
	Coversheet Minutes 8-12-2019.pdf�
	COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM

	City Council Minutes 08122019.pdf
	20190820_M&CC PC AGENDA_RZ-19-006.pdf
	20190820_M&CC PC AGENDA_RZ-19-007.pdf
	Coversheet Affirmed Policy.pdf�
	COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM

	APC-Stonecrest - Service Agreement (1 JUL - 31 DEC 2019).pdf
	Coversheet Discount Store Ordinance.pdf�
	COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM

	(308099) Discount Store Ordinance.pdf
	Coversheet PArty House Ordinance.pdf�
	COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM

	Party House Ordinance.pdf

	Coversheet PArty House Ordinance.pdf�
	COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA ITEM

	Party House Ordinance.pdf


